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1) Name of the issuer and its predecessors (if any)  
  
In answering this item, please also provide any names used by predecessor entities in the past five years and 
the dates of the name changes.  
  

Power Clouds Inc. (April 24, 2015 – present) 
World Assurance Group, Inc. (09/12/2008 – April 23, 2015) 

 
 
2) Address of the issuer’s principal executive offices  
  
Company Headquarters: 
Address 1:        One World Trade Center, Suite 8500        
     New York, NY 10007 
Phone:            
Email:           info@powercloudsinc.com 
Website(s):       www.powercloudsinc.com 
  
 
3) Security Information  
  
Trading Symbol:      Pinksheets: PWCL 

 
Exact title and class of securities outstanding:   
 
Common Stock:      
CUSIP:       739213 106 
Par or Stated Value:         $0.001 
Total shares authorized:       100,000,000      as of: March 31, 2017   
Total shares outstanding:         65,851,725*  as of: March 31, 2017 
 
* Includes 300,000 shares authorized to be issued but not yet physically issued at March 31, 2017.  These 
shares are recorded as Stock Issuable in the attached financial statements. 

* Does not include 30,000,000 shares that were cancelled and exchanged for 30,000,000 shares of Series D 
Preferred Stock as of December 28, 2016.  These common shares have not yet been physically received 
and processed as returned by the Company’s transfer agent. 

 
Preferred Stock: 
Par or Stated Value:           $0.001 
Total shares authorized:        50,000,000       as of: March 31, 2017 
Total shares outstanding: Series A         0       as of: March 31, 2017     
Total shares outstanding: Series B    0   as of: March 31, 2017 
Total shares outstanding: Series C    0   as of: March 31, 2017 
Total shares outstanding Series D 30,000,000  as of:  March 31, 2017 
 
Transfer Agent  
Name:          ClearTrust, LLC 
Address 1:         16540 Pointe Village Dr., # 206 
Address 2:         Lutz, Fl 33558 
Address 3:        
Phone:          813-235-4490 
Web:    www.cleartrustonline.com 
 
Is the Transfer Agent registered under the Exchange Act?*  Yes  
*To be included in the OTC Pink Current Information tier, the transfer agent must be registered under the 
Exchange Act.    
  
List any restrictions on the transfer of security:   
  
      NONE. 



  
Describe any trading suspension orders issued by the SEC in the past 12 months.     
  
      NONE. 
 
 
4)  Issuance History   
  
Listed below are any events that resulted in changes in total shares outstanding by the issuer in the past two 
fiscal years and any interim period.   
  
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, the Company issued a total of 74,627 shares of 
restricted common stock to a consultant for services rendered. Additionally, 1,000,000 shares of 
restricted common stock were returned to, and cancelled by, the Company from World Global Cash 
Ltd. as part of a stock exchange agreement (See Footnote 6 for more details). 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued a total of 12,050,000 shares of 
restricted common stock, consisting of 4,200,000 shares to Gaia Energy in exchange for the 
acquisition of certain third party PV solar assets (see Financial Footnote 8 below for more detail on 
this transaction) and 7,850,000 shares to 5 third parties in exchange for services rendered.  During 
the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company also issued 30,000,000 shares of Series D 
Convertible Preferred Stock in exchange for the return and cancellation of 30,000,000 shares of 
restricted common stock from Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company issued a total of 12,487,005 new common 
shares, consisting of 2,050,000 shares of restricted common stock in exchange for consulting 
services rendered, 6,500,000 shares of restricted common stock for the acquisition of certain 
subsidiaries of Power Clouds Pte. Ltd. (See Financial Footnote 10 for more detail), 3,937,005 shares of 
restricted common stock to Anch Holdings Ltd. as part of the consideration paid on behalf of one of 
the Company’s subsidiaries to purchase an equity interest in another company, and 800,000 shares of 
restricted common stock to three third party independent contractors as partial consideration for 
certain consulting services provided. 
 
Each of the above securities offerings or transactions was made by officers and directors of the 
issuer and was not a registered offering. The offerings relied upon an exemption under Regulation S 
or Regulation D or Rule 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The shares in these offerings 
or transactions were restricted (i.e., not freely tradable), where indicated above; and the certificates 
evidencing such shares contained a legend (1) stating that the shares have not been registered under 
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and (2) setting forth or referring to the restrictions on 
transferability and sale of the shares under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 
 
 
5)  Financial Statements   
  
Provide the financial statements described below for the most recent fiscal year end or quarter end to 
maintain qualification for the OTC Pink Current Information tier.  For the initial disclosure statement 
(qualifying for Current Information for the first time) please provide reports for the two previous fiscal years 
and any interim periods. 
 
A. Balance sheet;  

B. Statement of income;  

C. Statement of cash flows;  

D. Financial notes; and  

E. Audit letter, if audited  
 
The Company's financial statements were prepared by our Chief Financial Officer for its three months 
ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, and are attached hereto and incorporated herein as part of the 
Company's Quarterly Report, and filed herewith at the end of this Report.     
 
The financial statements requested pursuant to this item were prepared in accordance with US GAAP 
by persons with sufficient financial skills.    



6)  Describe the Issuer’s Business, Products and Services  
  
Describe the issuer’s business so a potential investor can clearly understand the company.  In answering 
this item, please include the following:  
  
A. a description of the issuer’s business operations;  
 
Power Clouds Inc. develops, owns and operates Utility Scale Solar projects internationally that 
provide clean energy to national power grids under long term, government supported, fixed price 
contracts. The Company has operational plants in Romania and Italy with a project under 
construction in Japan. The company plans to expand further within Italy and to other worldwide 
locations in the future. Power Clouds has a core team of experts operating at the international level, 
with specific expertise in photovoltaic solar parks, and a proven ability to deliver the highest technical 
and cutting-edge solutions across multiple locations.  
 
The Company currently has seven operating subsidiaries as outlined in the table below: 
 
Subsidiary Date Acquired / 

Established 

PWCL   

Ownership 

Country of 

Operation 

Power Clouds SRL (Formerly Park Solar Moldoveni) March 31, 2015 99.5% Romania 

F.R.A.N. Energy Investment SRL (FRAN) March 31, 2015 99.5% Romania 

Power Clouds (Japan) GK March 31, 2015 100% Japan 

Green Light GK March 31, 2015 100% Japan 

Power Clouds Europe B.V.  (“PCE”) 
Established  

August 2016 
100% Netherlands 

PC_Italia_01 S.R.L.  
(formerly Power Clouds (Wind) Italia Srl) 

Established  
June 2015 

100% (via PCE) Italy 

PC_Italia_02 S.R.L. 
Established  

August 2016 
100% (via PCE) Italy 

Tre Vallie Energia S.r.l. March 30, 2017 
80%  

(via PC_Italia_01) 
Italy 

Sant’Angelo Energia S.r.l. March 30, 2017 
100%  

(via PC_Italia_02) 
Italy 

 
 
B. Date and State (or Jurisdiction) of Incorporation:  
 
Power Clouds Inc. (formerly World Assurance Group, Inc.) (PWCL) was originally incorporated on 
January 1, 2000 in the State of Colorado. 
  
PWCL was reorganized and incorporated on November 8, 2006 in the State of Nevada. 
 
Effective February 1, 2013, PWCL acquired substantially all of the assets and liabilities of Cellad in 
exchange for a total of 80 shares of PWCL’s Series B preferred stock pursuant to a definitive 
Contribution Agreement dated January 31, 2013 by and among PWCL, PWCL’s wholly owned 
subsidiary, World Acq, Inc. (which subsequently changed its name to Cellad, Inc.), and Cellad. 
Although PWCL is the legal acquirer, for accounting purposes Cellad was the accounting acquirer 
and the transaction was accounted for as a reverse merger. 
 
Effective March 5, 2014, World Payment Solutions, Ltd. (“WPS”) acquired a controlling interest in 
PWCL through the purchase of 80 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock from Cellad 
pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement. On April 23, 2014, these shares were converted into 
common stock and on July 14, 2014 WPS also converted its Series A and Series C Convertible 
Preferred Stock, which represented 90% of the total issued and outstanding common stock of PWCL 
on the date of conversion. 
 
On January 30, 2015, WPS assigned all of its PWCL common shares to Mr. Fabio Galdi, who in turn 
assigned them to Power Clouds Holdings Pte Ltd (“PCH”), a Singapore company that was controlled 
by Mr. Galdi at that time. PCH is currently owned and controlled by Vincent Browne, PWCL’s CFO and 
Director, through Mr. Browne’s dispositive voting and investment control of Growthcap Investments 
Inc.  PCH is currently the majority shareholder of PWCL. 
 



C. the issuer’s primary and secondary SIC Codes;  
       
4911; 3674 
 
D. the issuer’s fiscal year end date;  
 
December 31

st
  

       
E. principal products or services, and their markets;  
 
Power Clouds Inc. develops, owns and operates Utility Scale Solar projects internationally that 
provide clean energy to national power grids under long term, government supported, fixed price 
contracts. The Company has operational plants in Romania, Italy and a project under construction in 
Japan. The company plans to expand further within Itay and to other worldwide locations in the 
future. The Company currently has six operating subsidiaries: Power Clouds SRL (Formerly Park 
Solar Moldoveni), F.R.A.N. Energy Investment SRL (FRAN), Power Clouds (Japan) GK, Green Light 
GK, Power Clouds (Wind) Italia Srl and Power Clouds Europe B.V. 
  
 
7)  Describe the Issuer’s Facilities  
  
The goal of this section is to provide a potential investor with a clear understanding of all assets, properties or 
facilities owned, used or leased by the issuer.    
  
In responding to this item, please clearly describe the assets, properties or facilities of the issuer, give the 
location of the principal plants and other property of the issuer and describe the condition of the properties. If 
the issuer does not have complete ownership or control of the property (for example, if others also own the 
property or if there is a mortgage on the property), describe the limitations on the ownership.  
  
If the issuer leases any assets, properties or facilities, clearly describe them as above and the terms of their 
leases.  
  
The Company leases office space for its operations on a month-to-month basis; its office is located at 
One World Trade Center, Suite 8500, New York, NY 10007. 
 
The Company’s two Japanese subsidiaries, Power Clouds Japan GK, and Green Light GK lease office 
space for its operations on a month-to-month basis; its office is located at 6-16-50 Roppongi, 
Minato-ku, Japan 106-0032. 
 
The Company’s two Romanian subsidiaries, Power Clouds SRL and F.R.A.N. Energy Investment SRL, 
are together under a three year lease that continues until October 31, 2017; the office is located at 
Romania, Bucharest Sector 1, Floreasca Street Nr. 60, Floor 4.  
 
Through its Romanian subsidiaries, the Company owns and operates two solar parks with a 
combined power output of 6.1 MW constructed at Scornicesti and Nucet in Romania that generate an 
average of 7,100 MWh/yr. The parks occupy approximately 6 hectares of land that is leased on a 25 
year term at combined cost of €16,000 per annum. 
 
 
8)  Officers, Directors, and Control Persons  
  
The goal of this section is to provide an investor with a clear understanding of the identity of all the persons or 
entities that are involved in managing, controlling or advising the operations, business development and 
disclosure of the issuer, as well as the identity of any significant shareholders.   
  



A.  Names of Officers, Directors, and Control Persons.  In responding to this item, please provide the 
names of each of the issuer’s executive officers, directors, general partners and control persons (control 
persons are beneficial owners of more than five percent (5%) of any class of the issuer’s equity securities), as 
of the date of this information statement.   
  
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman:   Roberto Forlani 
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Director: Vincent Browne 
 
Control Persons:  Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (controlled by Vincent Browne) 

VestCo Corp. (controlled by Vincent Browne) 
    Roberto Forlani – Chairman and CEO. 
    Gaia Energy S.R.L. (controlled by Lorenzo Silvestre) 
 
B. Legal/Disciplinary History. Please identify whether any of the foregoing persons have, in the last five years, 
been the subject of:  
  
1. A conviction in a criminal proceeding or named as a defendant in a pending criminal proceeding (excluding 
traffic violations and other minor offenses);  
 
 No 

       
2. The entry of an order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, by a court of 
competent jurisdiction that permanently or temporarily enjoined, barred, suspended or otherwise limited such 
person’s involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities, or banking activities;  
 
 No 

       
3. A finding or judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, the Commodity Futures Trading Commission, or a state securities regulator of a violation of 
federal or state securities or commodities law, which finding or judgment has not been reversed, suspended, 
or vacated; or  
  
 No    

 
4.The entry of an order by a self-regulatory organization that permanently or temporarily barred suspended or 
otherwise limited such person’s involvement in any type of business or securities activities.  
  
 No   
  
C.  Beneficial Shareholders. Provide a list of the name, address and shareholdings or the percentage of 
shares owned by all persons beneficially owning more than ten percent (10%) of any class of the issuer’s 
equity securities.  If any of the beneficial shareholders are corporate shareholders, provide the name and 
address of the person(s) owning or controlling such corporate shareholders and the resident agents of the 
corporate shareholders. 
 
Vincent Browne 
Ownership:  Includes: 21,587,571 shares of restricted common stock and 30,000,000 shares of Series 
D Convertible Preferred Stock held indirectly through Power Clouds Holdings. Ltd., a Singapore 
company, of which Mr. Browne holds dispositive voting and investment control over through his 
dispositive voting and investment control of Growthcap Investments Inc., a Delaware company; 
6,000,000 shares of restricted common stock indirectly held though VestCo Corp., a Delaware 
company owned and controlled by Mr. Browne, and 1,250,000 shares of restricted common stock held 
indirectly though his control of Debrun Capital Inc., which makes Mr. Browne a 61% Beneficial 
Shareholder. 
Address: One World Trade Center, Suite 8500, New York, NY 10007 
 
Roberto Forlani 
Ownership: Includes 21,701,784 shares of restricted common stock held directly by Mr. Roberto 
Forlani, our CEO, which makes Mr. Forlani a 23% Beneficial Shareholder. 
Address:  One World Trade Center, Suite 8500, New York, NY 10007 
 



Gaia Energy S.R.L.: 
Ownership: Includes 10,000,000 shares of restricted common stock held by Gaia, which is owned and 
controlled by Lorenzo Silvestre, which makes Gaia Energy a 15% beneficial shareholder. 
Address:  via Ferrovie dello Stato zona A.S.I., 81030 Gricignano di Aversa (Caserta), Italy 
 
9)  Third Party Providers  
  
Please provide the name, address, telephone number, and email address of each of the following outside 
providers that advise your company on matters relating to operations, business development and disclosure:  
   
Other Advisor:  Any other advisor(s) that assisted, advised, prepared or provided information with respect to 
this disclosure statement.  
Name:     Tali Durant    
Firm:        DART Business Services, LLC 
Address 1:     16192 Coastal Highway 
Address 2:     Lewes, DE 19958 
Email:         tali@dart-services.com  
 

 
 
10)  I, Vincent Browne, certify that:  
  
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report of Power Clouds Inc.;  
  
2. Based on my knowledge, this disclosure statement does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact 
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under 
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this disclosure 
statement; and  
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included or incorporated 
by reference in this disclosure statement, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results 
of operations and cash flows of the issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this disclosure statement.  
  
     June 6, 2017 
 
 /s/ Vincent Browne 

Vincent Browne 
       Chief Financial Officer 
 

mailto:tali@dart-services.com
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POWER CLOUDS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

Prepared by Management 

(Unaudited) 

 

 

March 31,         

2017 

 

December 31, 2016                  

(restated) 

ASSETS 
   

Current assets 
   

Total cash and cash equivalents $    373,104  
 

$    302,265  

Accounts receivable  209,118  
 

 116,720  

Energy incentives earned not invoiced  141,858  
 

 123,027  

Taxes recoverable  403,662  
 

 223,112  

Prepaid expenses and vendor deposits  63,357  
 

 141,686  

Receivable from sale of fixed assets  3,151,074  
 

 -    

Total current assets  4,342,173  
 

 906,811  

    
Fixed assets 

   
Fixtures & fittings  5,834  

 
 5,834  

Plant and machinery - net  6,116,537  
 

 6,210,934  

Leased assets - net  1,361,271  
 

 -    

Plants under construction - cost  -    
 

 2,242,213  

Total fixed assets  7,483,612  
 

 8,458,981  

    
Intangible assets 

   
Value of discounted future contracted income streams acquired  2,513,171  

 
 -    

Capitalized costs carrying value from Italian acquisitions 2,082,460 
 

 -    

Prepayments relating to acquisition of PV plants in Italy  244,840  
 

 1,262,397  

Total intangible assets   4,840,471 
 

 1,262,397  

    
Total Assets   $ 16,666,286 

 
$10,628,189  

    
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 

   
Current Liabilities 

   
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  659,184  

 
 565,668  

Payables related to sale of fixed asset  2,039,128  
 

- 

Notes payable - related parties  1,922,760  
 

 -    

Notes payable - third parties  18,694  
 

 -    

Loans from officer  280,000  
 

 275,000  

Current portion - long term debt  304,720  
 

 301,080  

Current portion - capital leases  126,556  
 

 -    

Current portion - convertible promissory notes  31,400  
 

 31,400  

Taxes payable  3,400  
 

 -    

Accrued Interest  35,458  
 

 52,335  

Total current liabilities   5,421,300 
 

 1,225,483  

    
Liabilities greater than 1 year 

   
Senior secured debt  896,580  

 
 1,053,780  

Capital leases  1,134,778  
 

 -    

Promissory notes payable - third parties - maturing 2019  18,694  
 

 -    

Promissory notes payable - third parties - maturing 2020  509,400  
 

 509,400  

Convertible promissory notes - third parties - maturing 2018  251,200  
 

 251,200  

Contingent amounts payable under earn out agreements - matures in 2018  706,342  
 

 - 

Total long term debt  3,516,994  
 

 1,814,380  

 
  

 
  

Total Liabilities  8,938,294 
 

 3,039,863  

    
Stockholders' Equity 

   
Series D Convertible Preferred stock  30,000  

 
 30,000  



Net Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 65,851,725 and 65,477,098 shares 
issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 respectively. 

 65,851  
 

 65,477  

Common stock issuable  5,500  
 

 300  

Other comprehensive loss  (92,051) 
 

 (50,758) 

Additional paid in capital  14,098,651  
 

 13,576,457  

Accumulated deficit   (6,379,958) 
 

 (6,032,724) 

      Total Power Cloud Inc. stockholders equity   7,727,993 
 

 7,588,751  

Non-controlling interests  -    
 

 (426) 

Total Shareholders' Equity  7,727,993 
 

 7,588,325  

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity  $ 16,666,286 
 

 $10,628,189  

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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POWER CLOUDS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Prepared by Management 

(unaudited) 

 

 

  

 For the Three Months Ended  

 

  
 March 31,  

2017  

 

 March 31,  

2016  

     Revenues 

 

 $       279,251  
 

 $      278,347  

Cost of revenues 

 

 (140,486) 
 

 (93,938) 

Gross profit 

 

 138,765  
 

 184,409  

 
 

   
Operating expenses 

 
   

Sales and general administrative 
 

203,283 
 

 264,774  

Plant operating costs 
 

 59,406  
 

 59,925  

Costs relating to financing 
 

 600  
 

 -  

     
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 

 
 $     (124,524) 

 
 $    (140,290) 

     
Interest costs 

 
 (33,119) 

 
 (6,750) 

Depreciation and amortization 
 

 (94,397) 
 

 (120,182) 

Other income 
 

 33,000  
 

 -  

Gain (loss) on foreign exchange - realised 
 

 28,725  
 

 -  

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 
 

 (156,917) 
 

 -  

 Net loss before tax  
 

 $(347,232) 
 

 $(267,223) 

Corporation tax payable 
 

 -  
 

 -  

 Net loss after tax  
 

 $    (347,232) 
 

 $    (267,223) 

     
 Weighted average shares outstanding:  

    
 Basic  

 
 66,331,305  

 
 84,739,598  

 Fully diluted  
 

 96,331,305  
 

 84,739,598  

 

Earnings (loss) per share - fully diluted attributable to common stockholders 
  

 Basic  
 

($0.01) 
 

($0.00) 
    

 Fully diluted  
 

($0.00) 
 

($0.00) 
    

 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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POWER CLOUDS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) 

Prepared by Management 

(Unaudited) 

 

 

       
Additional Other Accumulated 

  

 
Preferred Shares Common stock issued  Common stock issuable paid-in 

Comprehe

nsive Surplus 

Non  

Cont- 

rolling    

 

Series D Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital 

Income/ 

(Loss) (Deficit) Interests Total 

Balance at December 31, 

2015 
 -     $      -     84,427,098   $84,427   300,000   $300   $12,284,300   $(278,771)  $(4,140,216)  $(426)  $7,949,613  

Stock compensation costs - 

employees  
  1,500,000 1,500 

  
178,500 

   
 180,000  

Restricted shares issued to 

officers for services  
  6,000,000 6,000 

  
474,000 

   
 480,000  

Restricted shares issued for 

acquisition of PV plant in 

Italy 
 

  4,200,000 4,200 
  

436,800 
   

 441,000  

Restricted shares issued to 

consultants for services  
  350,000 350 

  
28,505 

   
 28,855  

Exchange translation of 

foreign held assets  
  

     
228,013 

  
 228,013  

Exchange of equity 

investments in WRMT for 

return of common shares 
 

  (1,000,000) (1,000) 
  

1,000 
   

 -  

Debt forgiveness - related 

party  
  

    
173,352 

   
 173,352  

Surrender of Common 

shares for Series D Preferred 

shares 

 30,000,000   30,000  (30,000,000) (30,000) 
      

(30,000)  

Net loss for the period 
 

  
      

(1,892,508) 
 

(1,892,508)  

Balance at December 31, 

2016 
 30,000,000   $30,000   65,477,098   $65,477   -   $   300   $13,576,457   $(50,758)  $(6,032,724)  $(426)  $7,558,326  

Restricted shares issued to 

consultants for services  
   300,000   $300  

  
 $27,150  

   
 27,450  

Restricted shares issued to 

consultants for services  
   74,627   $75  

  
 $12,612  

   
 12,687  

Acquisition of Italian 

operating companies  
  

  
 5,200,000   $5,200   $482,858  33,942 

  
 522,000  

Exchange translation of 

foreign held assets  
  

     
 (75,236) 

  
(75,236)  

Purchase of non-controlling 

interests  
  

    
 $(426) 

  
 $426   -  

Net loss for the period 
 

  
      

 (347,232) 
 

(347,232)  

Balance at March 31, 2017  30,000,000   $30,000   65,851,725   $ 65,851   5,200,000   $ 5,500   $ 14,098,651   $ (92,051  $ (6,379,956)  $        -      $ 7,697,995 

            

 

 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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POWER CLOUDS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Prepared by Management 

(Unaudited) 

 

 

 For the Three Months Ended  

 

March 31, 2017 
 

March 31, 2016 

    Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
   

Net (loss) income  $(347,232) 
 

 $(267,223) 

    Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operations 
  

      Depreciation  94,397  
 

 120,182  

      Restricted common stock issued for services  40,136  
 

 -  

      Loss on sale of fixed assets  156,917  
 

 -  

      Gain on acquisition of Italian operating companies  -  
 

 -  

    
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisition and disposals: 

   
      Accounts receivable and other short term receivables  12,892  

 
 (82,427) 

      Accounts payable & accrued liabilities  26,143  
  (195,005) 

      Energy incentives earned not yet invoiced  35,637  
  177,652  

      Vendor deposits  85,617  
 

 (18,864) 

      Accrued interest  13,198  
 

 -  

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities  117,705  
 

 (265,685) 

 
   

Cash flows from investing activities: 
   

Plants under construction  -  
 

 (26,549) 

Cash assumed in acquisitions  82,937  
 

 -  

Cash provided from sale of Japan plant  1,032,407  
 

 -  

Cash paid for the acquisition of Italian subs  (799,028) 
 

 -  

Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities  316,316  
 

 (26,549) 

    
Cash flows from financing activities: 

   
Net proceeds of debt - related parties  5,000  

 
 -  

Payments on debt principal - senior debt  (157,200) 
 

 -  

Payment on notes payable  (30,075) 
 

 -  

Net cash used in financing activities  (182,275) 
 

 -  

    
Cash flows from foreign currency activities: 

   
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange  28,725  

 
 -  

Translation of foreign held assets  (209,631) 
 

 373,151  

Net cash provided by (used in) foreign currency activities  (180,907) 
 

 373,151  

    
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  70,839  

 
 80,917  

    
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period  302,265  

 
 56,679  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period  $    373,104  
 

 $    137,595  

 
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURE: 

  Cash paid for interest  $     19,921  
 

 $            -  

Cash paid for taxes  $           -  
 

 $            -  

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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POWER CLOUDS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Prepared by Management 

(Unaudited) 

 

 

 

 
 For the Three Months Ended  

 
March 31, 2017 

 
March 31, 2016 

 
 

Restricted shares issued to consultants for services  $      40,137  

 

 $      28,855  

Restricted shares issued to officers for services  $            -  
 

 $     480,000  

Debt forgiven by related parties  $            -  
 

 $     173,352  

Common shares issued as deposit for purchase of PV plant in Italy  $            -  
 

 $     441,000  

    Acquisition of Italian operating companies: 
   

Leased assets - net  1,361,271  
 

 -  

Intangible assets - capitalized costs relating to PV parks (net)  1,797,800  
 

 -  

Intangible assets - discounted contracted future income  2,797,831  
 

 -  

Accounts receivable  105,822  
 

 -  

Tax receivables  181,412  
 

 -  

Cash assumed  83,356  
 

 -  

Income earned not invoiced  54,743  
 

 -  

Prepayments  7,323  
 

 -  

Trade payables  (67,714) 
 

 -  

Tax payables  (3,405) 
 

 -  

Lease ST  (127,196) 
 

 -  

Lease LT  (1,140,515) 
 

 -  

Cash paid  (799,028) 
 

 -  

Loan notes issued  (1,970,056) 
 

 -  

Prepaid expenses used  (1,049,731) 
 

 -  

Contingent amounts payable under earn-out agreements  (709,913) 
 

 -  

Common shares issued   522,000  
 

 -  

 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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POWER CLOUDS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Financial Statements 

(Unaudited) 

  

1.           Organization and Formation  

 

Power Clouds Inc. (formerly World Assurance Group, Inc.) (“We”, “PWCL” or the “Company”) was incorporated in the 

State of Colorado on January 1, 2000, then reorganized as a Nevada corporation on November 8, 2006. On September 11, 

2008 the corporation changed its name from Asset Realization, Inc. to World Assurance Group, Inc. 

 

On April 24, 2015, the Company changed its name from World Assurance Group, Inc. to Power Clouds Inc. 

 

Change of control of PWCL  

Effective March 5, 2014, World Payment Solutions, Ltd. (“WPS”) acquired a controlling interest in PWCL through the 

purchase of 80 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock from shareholders pursuant to a Stock Purchase 

Agreement.  These 80 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock represented an 80% beneficial ownership interest 

in PWCL and 80% of the total issued and outstanding common shares on a fully diluted, as-converted basis. As a result of 

this acquisition, WPS became the majority shareholder of the PWCL. 

 

On April 23, 2014, WPS converted the 80 shares of PWCL Series B Convertible Preferred Stock into a total of 

29,802,080 shares of restricted common stock, which represented 80% of the fully diluted common stock of PWCL on 

the date of conversion.   

 

On January 30, 2015, WPS assigned all of its PWCL shares to Mr. Fabio Galdi, who in turn assigned them to Power 

Clouds Holdings Pte Ltd (“PCH”), a Singapore company that was controlled by Mr. Galdi at the time. PCH is currently 

owned and controlled by Vincent Browne, PWCL’s CFO and Director, through Mr. Browne’s dispositive voting and 

investment control of Growthcap Investments Inc. PCH is currently the majority shareholder of PWCL. 

 

Acquisition of World Global Assets Pte. Ltd  

Effective March 27, 2014, PWCL acquired World Global Assets Pte. Ltd. (“WGA”), a Singapore private limited 

company, through a stock purchase agreement by and among PWCL, WGA and World Global Cash Pte. Ltd. (“WGC), a 

Singapore company and the sole stockholder of WGA. WGA was sold on September 30, 2015 to Fabio Galdi.  See 

Footnote 5 & 6 for more details.  

 

Reverse Merger of PWCL’s Space Technology Business into World Media and Technology Corp. (“WRMT”) (formerly 

Halton Universal Brands Inc.) and WRMT Share Distribution 

Effective October 29, 2014: 

1) PWCL acquired 7,095,000 shares of World Media & Technology Corp. (formerly Halton Universal Brands Inc.) 

(“WRMT”), representing 98% of WRMT’s issued and outstanding share capital, for cash consideration of 

$378,000, 

2) WRMT discontinued its previously existing brokerage and brand consultancy business, and 

3) WRMT acquired the SPACE technology business and related assets from PWCL for consideration of $557,898 

funded by way of debt from PWCL (collectively “the October 29, 2014 transactions”). 

 

In May of 2015 PWCL’s Board approved a share dividend consisting of 13,812,850 of the 15,095,000 common shares 

PWCL held in WRMT. Shareholders of PWCL received one (1) share of WRMT common stock for every six (6) 

PWCL shares of common stock held as of the record date, which was October 1, 2015. PWCL maintains a 3.7% 

ownership position in WRMT following the share dividend distribution.  For more information, please see WRMT’s 

SEC Form S-1/A filed on September 2, 2015 and the Company’s Prospectus, Form 424B3, filed on October 7, 2015. 

Also see Footnote 6 for more details. 

 

Acquisition of certain subsidiaries from Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly Power Clouds Pte. Ltd.). 

On March 25, 2015 (the "Closing Date"), PWCL acquired a controlling interest in three companies: Power Clouds 

Japan GK (PCGK), Parc Solar Moldoveni SRL (“SPM”) and F.R.A.N. Energy Investment SRL (“FRAN”), each a 

subsidiary of Power Clouds Pte. Ltd., a Singapore company, pursuant to an Equity Acquisition and Contribution 

Agreement, as amended, whereby PWCL contributed 5700 RON to SPM, which represents 95% of the share capital of 

SPM, and 7600 RON to FRAN, which represents 95% of the share capital of FRAN, and Power Clouds Pte. Ltd. 

transferred 100% of its capital in PCGK to PWCL. In further consideration for the acquisition of the controlling interest 

in the three companies, (i) PWCL issued a $100,000 promissory note to Mr. Forlani, Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. 

(formerly Power Clouds Pte. Ltd.)’s CEO and shareholder, accruing no interest and payable in full on March 25, 2016, 



(ii) Mr. Galdi, PWCL’s Chairman and controlling shareholder, transferred 6,500,000 shares of PWCL common stock 

owned by Mr. Galdi individually to Mr. Forlani, and (iii) PWCL issued 6,500,000 shares of PWCL common stock to 

Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly Power Clouds Pte. Ltd.) See Footnote 7 for more details. In addition, all 

intercompany payables were set off against each other with any surplus due after such setoff written off, and Mr. 

Forlani forgave all debt owed to him by each of the three target companies. 

 

Acquisition of Entity Under Common Control 

In July of 2015, PWCL acquired a 95% membership interest in Green Light GK, a Japanese company owned by Power 

Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly Power Clouds Pte. Ltd), the majority shareholder of PWCL. 

 

PC_Italia_01 S.R.L. (Formerly Power Clouds Wind Italia S.R.L.) 

In June of 2015, PWCL incorporated a company in Italy, PC_Italia_01 S.R.L. (formerly named Power Clouds Wind 

Italia S.R.L.).This company was incorporated to acquire Italian special purpose vehicles (SPV’s) , power plants and / or 

other assets located in Italy. As of December 31, 2016 no such acquisitions had been closed. During the quarter ended 

March 31, 2107, this company completed the acquisition of an SPV in Italy which operates a 1MW PV solar park. (See 

Footnote 10 for more information). 

 

Power Clouds Europe B.V. 

In August of 2016, the Company incorporated a new wholly owned subsidiary in the Netherlands, Power Clouds 

Europe B.V. This company was incorporated to ultimately hold the Company’s European operating companies and 

sub-holding companies as appropriate. It has no direct operating activities as at March 31, 2017. 

 

PC_Italia_01 S.R.L. (Formerly Power Clouds Wind Italia S.R.L.) 

In August of 2016, the Company incorporated a new company in Italy, PC_Italia_02 SRL as a wholly owned subsidiary 

of Power Clouds Europe B.V. This company was incorporated to acquire Italian special purpose vehicles, power plants 

and / or other assets located in Italy. As of December 31, 2016 no such acquisitions had been closed. During the quarter 

ended March 31, 2107, this company completed the acquisition of an SPV in Italy which operates a 702KW PV solar 

park. (See Footnote 10 for more information). 

 

Summary: 

Power Clouds Inc. (PWCL) is a holding company that operated through nine operating subsidiaries as of March 31, 

2017: 

 
Subsidiary Date Acquired / 

Established 

PWCL   

Ownership 

Country of 

Operation 

Power Clouds SRL (Formerly Park Solar Moldoveni) March 31, 2015 99.5% Romania 

F.R.A.N. Energy Investment SRL (FRAN) March 31, 2015 99.5% Romania 

Power Clouds (Japan) GK March 31, 2015 100% Japan 

Green Light GK March 31, 2015 100% Japan 

Power Clouds Europe B.V.  (“PCE”) 
Established  

August 2016 
100% Netherlands 

PC_Italia_01 S.R.L.  
(formerly Power Clouds (Wind) Italia Srl) 

Established  
June 2015 

100% (via PCE) Italy 

PC_Italia_02 S.R.L. 
Established  

August 2016 
100% (via PCE) Italy 

Tre Vallie Energia S.r.l. March 30, 2017 
80%  

(via PC_Italia_01) 
Italy 

Sant’Angelo Energia S.r.l. March 30, 2017 
100%  

(via PC_Italia_02) 
Italy 

 

The Company has elected a calendar accounting period beginning on January 1 and ending on December 31 of each year. 

 

On June 16, 2014, the Company effected a 1-for-50 reverse stock split of the Company's issued, outstanding and total 

authorized common stock. All share numbers reflect this reverse stock split. 

 

 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Basis of presentation 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP"). 

 



Basis of consolidation  

The consolidated financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 include 100% of the assets, 

liabilities, revenues, expenses and cash flows of Power Clouds Inc. The Company also consolidated the financial 

statements of its operating subsidiaries: Power Clouds SRL, FRAN Energy Investment SRL, Power Clouds Japan GK, 

Green Light GK, PC_Italia_01 SRL, PC Italia_02 SRL, Power Clouds Europe B.V., Tre Vallie Energia S.R.L. and 

Sant’Angelo Energia S.R.L. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The 

results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the respective periods are included in the consolidated statements 

of operations from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. 

 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 

statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are adjusted to reflect actual experience when necessary. Significant 

estimates and assumptions affect many items in the financial statements. These include estimates of fair value of 

common stock and related impact to stock-based compensation. Actual results may differ from those estimates and 

assumptions, and such results may affect income, financial position or cash flows. 

 

Risks and Uncertainties 

The Company's operations are subject to certain risk and uncertainties including financial, operational, technological, 

and regulatory risks including the potential risk of business failure.  Also see Footnote 3 regarding going concern 

matters. 

 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Company follows paragraph 825-10-50-10 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification for disclosures about 

fair value of its financial instruments and paragraph 820-10-35-37 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification 

(“Paragraph 820-10-35-37”) to measure the fair value of its financial instruments. Paragraph 820-10-35-37 establishes a 

framework for measuring fair value in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. 

GAAP), and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. 

 

To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and related disclosures, Paragraph 820-10-35-37 

establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three 

(3) broad levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The three (3) levels of fair value hierarchy 

defined by Paragraph 820-10-35-37 are described below: 

 

Level 1 Quoted market prices available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. 

Level 2 Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1 that are either directly or 

indirectly observable as of the reporting date. 

Level 3 Pricing inputs that are generally observable inputs and not corroborated by market data. 

 

Financial assets are considered Level 3 when their fair values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash 

flow methodologies or similar techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable. 

 

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. If the inputs used to measure the financial assets and liabilities 

fall within more than one level described above, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant 

to the fair value measurement of the instrument. The carrying amount of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, 

such as cash, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and accrued expenses, approximate their fair value because of the 

short maturity of those instruments. 

 

Transactions involving related parties cannot be presumed to be carried out on an arm's-length basis, as the requisite 

conditions of competitive, free-market dealings may not exist. Representations about transactions with related parties, if 

made, shall not imply that the related party transactions were consummated on terms equivalent to those that prevail in 

arm's-length transactions unless such representations can be substantiated. It is not however practical to determine the 

fair value of advances from stockholders, if any, due to their related party nature. 

 

Related parties 

The Company follows subtopic 850-10 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification for the identification of related 

parties and disclosure of related party transactions. 

 



Pursuant to Section 850-10-20 the Related parties include: (a). affiliates of the Company; (b). entities for which 

investments in their equity securities would be required, absent the election of the fair value option under the Fair Value 

Option Subsection of Section 825–10–15, to be accounted for by the equity method by the investing entity; (c). trusts 

for the benefit of employees, such as pension and profit-sharing trusts that are managed by or under the trusteeship of 

management; (d). principal owners of the Company; (e). management of the Company; (f). other parties with which the 

Company may deal if one party controls or can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the 

other to an extent that one of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests; 

and (g). other parties that can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the transacting parties or 

that have an ownership interest in one of the transacting parties and can significantly influence the other to an extent 

that one or more of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. 

 

The financial statements shall include disclosures of material related party transactions, other than compensation 

arrangements, expense allowances, and other similar items in the ordinary course of business. However, disclosure of 

transactions that are eliminated in the preparation of financial statements is not required in those statements. The 

disclosures shall include: (a). the nature of the relationship(s) involved; (b). a description of the transactions, including 

transactions to which no amounts or nominal amounts were ascribed, for each of the periods for which income 

statements are presented, and such other information deemed necessary to an understanding of the effects of the 

transactions on the financial statements; (c). the dollar amounts of transactions for each of the periods for which income 

statements are presented and the effects of any change in the method of establishing the terms from that used in the 

preceding period; and (d). amounts due from or to related parties as of the date of each balance sheet presented and, if 

not otherwise apparent, the terms and manner of settlement. 

 

Commitments and contingencies 

The Company follows subtopic 450-20 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification to report accounting for 

contingencies. Certain conditions may exist as of the date the financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss 

to the Company but which will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The Company 

assesses such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss 

contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against the Company or un-asserted claims that may result in 

such proceedings, the Company evaluates the perceived merits of any legal proceedings or un-asserted claims as well as 

the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein. 

 

If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is probable that a material loss has been incurred and the amount of 

the liability can be estimated, then the estimated liability would be accrued in the Company’s financial statements. If the 

assessment indicates that a potential material loss contingency is not probable but is reasonably possible, or is probable 

but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the contingent liability, and an estimate of the range of possible losses, if 

determinable and material, would be disclosed. 

 

Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they involve guarantees, in which case the 

guarantees would be disclosed. Management does not believe, based upon information available at this time that these 

matters will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

However, there is no assurance that such matters will not materially and adversely affect the Company’s business, 

financial position, and results of operations or cash flows. 

 

Intellectual Property 
To date, we do not have any federally registered trademarks. We do not currently have any patents or patent 

applications in process. Any future patent applications with respect to our technology may not be granted, and, if 

granted, patents may be challenged or invalidated. In addition, issued patents may not provide us with any competitive 

advantages and may be challenged by third parties. Our practice is to affix copyright notices on our product literature in 

order to assert copyright protection for these works. 

 

Income Tax Provision 

The Company accounts for income taxes under Section 740-10-30 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification, 

which requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that 

have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. 

 

Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are based on the differences between the financial statement and 

tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to 

reverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to the extent management concludes it is more likely 

than not that the assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates 

expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or 



settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the statements of 

operations in the period that includes the enactment date. 

 

The Company adopted the provisions of paragraph 740-10-25-13 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. 

Paragraph 740-10-25-13 addresses the determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax 

return should be recorded in the financial statements. Under paragraph 740-10-25-13, the Company may recognize the 

tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on 

examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the 

financial statements from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty 

percent (50%) likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Paragraph 740-10-25-13 also provides guidance on 

de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties on income taxes, accounting in interim periods and requires 

increased disclosures. 

 

The estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities are reported in 

the accompanying balance sheets, as well as tax credit carry-backs and carry- forwards. The Company periodically 

reviews the recoverability of deferred tax assets recorded on its balance sheets and provides valuation allowances as 

management deems necessary. 

 

Management makes judgments as to the interpretation of the tax laws that might be challenged upon an audit and cause 

changes to previous estimates of tax liability. In addition, the Company operates within multiple taxing jurisdictions and 

is subject to audit in these jurisdictions. In management’s opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been 

made for all years. If actual taxable income by tax jurisdiction varies from estimates, additional allowances or reversals 

of reserves may be necessary. 

 

Uncertain Tax Positions 

The Company did not take any uncertain tax positions and had no unrecognized tax liabilities or benefits in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 740-10-25 at March 31, 2017 and 2016. 

  

Revenue Recognition 
The Company applies paragraph 605-10-S99-1 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification for revenue 

recognition. The Company recognizes revenue when it is realized or realizable and earned. The Company considers 

revenue realized or realizable and earned when all of the following criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence of an 

arrangement exists, (ii) the product has been shipped or the services have been rendered to the customer, (iii) the sales 

price is fixed or determinable, and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured. 

 

The Company derives its revenues from the generation of green energy from its power plants to the local power grid on 

long term contracts. In Romania, the Company also holds a license to sell energy directly to end users which is recorded 

as revenue in line with the above policies. 

 

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement is demonstrated via invoice; service is considered provided when the invoice is 

raised, or applicable government incentives/subsidies have been earned from the generation of energy from the plants, 

in line with the customer agreements and delivery of the products or service has taken place. 

  

Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718.  Under the fair value recognition 

provisions of this statement, stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the 

award and is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is the vesting 

period.  The Company elected the modified-prospective method, under which prior periods are not revised for 

comparative purposes.  The valuation provisions of ASC 718 apply to new grants and to grants that were outstanding as of 

the effective date and subsequently modified.  

 

During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no stock options granted or outstanding.  

 

During the three months ended March 31, 2017, no warrants were issued. As of March 31, 2017, 600,000 warrants to 

purchase common stock were issued and outstanding, exercisable at $0.20 per share and having a term of 3 years.  As 

the exercise price of the warrants is above the market price at March 31, 2017, no beneficial conversion feature cost was 

recorded against these warrants in the current period.  No charge has been taken for these warrants in the income 

statement for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016. 

 

 

 



Net income (loss) per common share 

Net income (loss) per common share is computed pursuant to section 260-10-45 of the FASB Accounting Standards 

Codification. Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted 

average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net income (loss) per common share is 

computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock and potentially 

outstanding shares of common stock during the period to reflect the potential dilution that could occur from common 

shares issuable through contingent shares issuance arrangement, stock options or warrants. 

 

  
 For the Three Months Ended  

  

 March 31,  

2017  

 

 March 31,   

2016  

Net loss attributable to common stockholders 

 

 $   (347,232) 
 

 $   (267,223) 

Net loss per share – fully diluted 

 

($0.00) 
 

($0.00) 

 Basic  
 

 66,331,305  
 

 84,739,598  

 Fully diluted  
 

 96,331,305  
 

 84,739,598  

 

As of March 31, 2017, 600,000 warrants to purchase common stock were issued and outstanding, exercisable at $0.20 

per share and having a term of 3 years. As the exercise price of the warrants is above the market price at March 31, 

2017, no beneficial conversion feature cost was recorded against these warrants in the current period. No charge has 

been taken for these warrants in the income statement for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016. 

 

Cash flows reporting 

The Company adopted paragraph 230-10-45-24 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification for cash flows reporting, 

classifies cash receipts and payments according to whether they stem from operating, investing, or financing activities and 

provides definitions of each category, and uses the indirect or reconciliation method (“Indirect method”) as defined by 

paragraph 230-10-45-25 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification to report net cash flow from operating activities 

by adjusting net income to reconcile it to net cash flow from operating activities by removing the effects of (a) all deferrals 

of past operating cash receipts and payments and all accruals of expected future operating cash receipts and payments and 

(b) all items that are included in net income that do not affect operating cash receipts and payments. 

 

The Company reports the reporting currency equivalent of foreign currency cash flows, using the current exchange rate at 

the time of the cash flows and the effect of exchange rate changes on cash held in foreign currencies is reported as a 

separate item in the reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of cash and cash equivalents and separately provides 

information about investing and financing activities not resulting in cash receipts or payments in the period pursuant to 

paragraph 830-230-45-1 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. 

 

Subsequent Events 

The Company follows the guidance in Section 855-10-50 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification for the 

disclosure of subsequent events. The Company will evaluate subsequent events through the date when the financial 

statements were issued. Pursuant to ASU 2010-09 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification, the Company 

considers its financial statements issued when they are widely distributed to users, such as through filing them with OTC 

Markets. 

 

Reclassification 

Certain amounts from prior periods may have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. There is no 

effect on net loss, cash flows or stockholders’ deficit as a result of these reclassifications. 

 

Recently issued accounting pronouncements 

The Company has reviewed all recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting pronouncements and does not believe the 

future adoption of any such pronouncements may be expected to cause a material impact on its financial condition or the 

results of its operations. 

 

 

3. Going Concern 

 

The financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 have been prepared on a going concern 

basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the normal course of our 

business.  As reflected in the accompanying financial statements, we had a net loss of $347,232 and $267,223 for the three 

months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

 



We had accumulated Power Clouds Inc. stockholder’s equity of $7,727,993 and $7,588,325 as at March 31, 2017 and 

March 31, 2016, respectively, and a working capital deficit of $1,079,127 and $318,673 as of March 31, 2017 and March 

31, 2016, respectively. As at March 31, 2017 we had $373,104 of unrestricted cash on hand. 

 

Given the current level of cash resources, receivables and long term supply contracts, management is confident that 

current operations will continue for the foreseeable future. The Board of Directors of PWCL therefore feels that the 

Company has the ability to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. 

 

As a result, the accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments related to recoverability and 

classification of asset carrying amounts or the amount and classification of liabilities that might result should the company 

be unable to continue as a going concern. 

 

The Company needs to seek additional funds to finance construction and acquisition of additional renewable energy 

plants and business plan through debt and/or equity financing.  The successful outcome of future financing activities 

cannot be determined at this time and there is no assurance that if achieved, the Company will have sufficient funds to 

execute its intended business plan. There is no guarantee that sufficient or any new funding will be achieved on terms 

suitable to the business, or at all. 

 

 

4. Reverse Merger with Cellad, Inc. 

 

Effective February 1, 2013, PWCL acquired, through its wholly owned subsidiary, World Acq, Inc., substantially all of 

the assets and liabilities of Cellad, Inc., a Delaware registered company, in exchange for a total of 80 shares of PWCL’s 

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Shares”) pursuant to a definitive Contribution Agreement dated January 31, 

2013 by and among PWCL, World Acq. Inc. and Cellad, Inc. (the “Contribution Agreement”).  Although PWCL is the 

legal acquirer, Cellad, Inc. is considered the accounting acquirer. World Acq. Inc., the wholly owned subsidiary of 

PWCL incorporated in Nevada that acquired the Cellad Delaware assets, subsequently changed its name to Cellad, Inc. 

 

On September 30, 2015 PWCL sold Cellad, Inc. to Fabio Galdi as part of the spin out of WRMT; See Footnote 6 for 

more details. 

 

 

5. Acquisition and Disposition of Entity Under Common Control: World Global Assets Pte. Ltd. 
 

Effective March 27, 2014, PWCL consolidated the acquisition of World Global Assets Pte. Ltd. (“WGA”), a Singapore 

private limited company. The transaction was completed through a stock purchase agreement by and among PWCL, 

WGA and World Global Cash Pte. Ltd. (“WGC), a Singapore company and the sole stockholder of WGA. WGA became 

a wholly owned subsidiary of PWCL in exchange 1,000,000 shares of restricted common stock of PWCL, issued to WGC. 

WGA owns various brands, trademarks, technology and intellectual property, including Power Clouds and AdKoin. Fabio 

Galdi, the Issuer’s CEO at the time and a beneficial majority shareholder, also holds 100% of the voting and investment 

control of WGC. 

 

On September 30, 2015, in line with our refocusing exclusively as a Renewable Energy provider and in conjunction 

with the spin out of WRMT, PWCL sold WGA and Cellad Inc. to Fabio Galdi, our majority shareholder. As part of that 

sale, PWCL retained certain intellectual property consisting of the Power Clouds logo, domain name and trademark, 

through an intellectual property assignment by WGA to PWCL. In addition, all intercompany payables were set off 

against each other with any surplus due to each party after such setoff written off, and WGA forgave all debt owed to 

them, except for a convertible loan note for $1,000,000 issued to WGA. The note has a three-year term, accrues no 

interest, and is convertible at a fixed price of $0.20 per share, subject to certain triggers and restrictions. The Company 

can repay the note at any time with no penalty. 

 

As a result of this transaction, and as the companies are entities under common control, we booked a contribution to 

Additional Paid in Capital of $494,488 to reflect the gain on the disposition of the WGA business. 

 

During the quarter ended September 30, 2016 a portion of the convertible loan note, $282,600, was assigned to various 

third parties and is now convertible at market price, with a floor price of $0.20 per share and a maturity date of 

December 31, 2018. Another portion of this note, $509,400 was assigned to various third parties, is not convertible and 

includes a maturity date of December 31, 2020. The remainder of the note was forgiven by WGA. 

 



As a result of the above assignments and the forgiveness of the remainder of the note by WGA, a related party, we 

booked a contribution to Additional Paid in Capital of $173,352 as gain on forgiveness of debt in the year ended 

December 31, 2016. 

 

 

6. Reverse Merger of PWCL’s Space Technology Business into World Media & Technology Corp. (formerly 

Halton Universal Brands, Inc.) and Subsequent Spin Out. 

 

Effective October 29, 2014: 

 

1) PWCL acquired 7,095,000 shares of World Media & Technology Corp. (formerly Halton Universal Brands Inc.) 

(“WRMT”), representing 98% of WRMT’s issued and outstanding share capital, for cash consideration of 

$378,000, 

2) WRMT discontinued its previously existing brokerage and brand consultancy business, and 

3) WRMT acquired the SPACE technology business and related assets from PWCL for consideration of $557,898 

funded by way of debt from PWCL (collectively “the October 29, 2014 transactions”). 

 

We have accounted for the October 29, 2014 transactions as a reverse merger of PWCL’s SPACE technology business 

and related assets into WRMT. This reverse merger has been accounted for as a reverse capitalization with PWCL’s 

SPACE technology business, the legally acquired business, being treated as the acquirer of WRMT for accounting and 

financial reporting purposes.   

 

PWCL’s SPACE technology business were originally formed in May 2014 (“Inception”) as a business division of PWCL 

to undertake the design, manufacturing and marketing of wearable technology products and services and the provision of 

Mobile Virtual Network Operator (“MVNO”) wireless services. 

 

In March of 2015, Fabio Galdi, the Company’s Chairman and majority stockholder, purchased 12,000,000 shares of 

WRMT for $3,000,000 cash. As of March 31, 2015, PWCL owned 52.8% of WRMT and Fabio Galdi individually owned 

42% of WRMT. As of March 31, 2016, PWCL owns 4.5% of WRMT and Fabio Galdi individually owns approximately 

77% of WRMT. 

 

Share Dividend: Spin Out 

In May of 2015, the Board approved a share dividend consisting of 13,812,850 of the 15,095,000 common shares it 

currently holds in WRMT. Shareholders of PWCL received one (1) share of WRMT common stock for every six (6) 

PWCL shares of common stock that they hold as of the record date, which was October 1, 2015. PWCL held a 4.5% 

ownership position in WRMT following the share dividend distribution. For more information, please see WRMT’s 

SEC Form S-1/A filed on September 2, 2015 and the Company’s Prospectus, Form 424B3, filed on October 7, 2015.  

 

The Company booked a contribution to Additional Paid in Capital of $1,415,111to reflect the gain on the spinout of the 

WRMT Business for the twelve months ended December 31, 2016. 

 

In December of 2016, PWCL transferred the remaining WRMT shares to World Global Cash Pte. Ltd., a company 

controlled by Fabio Galdi, as part of a stock exchange agreement, pursuant to which 1,000,000 PWCL common shares 

were returned to PWCL’s total issued and outstanding common stock. As the consideration was entirely in the form of 

shares of securities, there is no gain and no loss on the transaction which is recorded in Additional Paid in Capital as at 

December 31, 2016. 

 

 

7. Acquisition of certain subsidiaries from Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd.  

On March 25, 2015 (the "Closing Date"), PWCL acquired a controlling interest in three companies: Power Clouds 

Japan GK (PCGK), Solar Parc Moldoveni SRL (“SPM”) and F.R.A.N. Energy Investment SRL (“FRAN”), each a 

subsidiary of Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly Power Clouds Pte. Ltd.) a Singapore company, pursuant to an 

Equity Acquisition and Contribution Agreement, as amended, whereby PWCL contributed 5700 RON to SPM, which 

represents 95% of the share capital of SPM, and 7600 RON to FRAN, which represents 95% of the share capital of 

FRAN, and Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly Power Clouds Pte. Ltd.) transferred 100% of its capital in 

PCGK to PWCL. In further consideration for the acquisition of the controlling interest in the three companies, (i) 

PWCL issued a $100,000 promissory note to Mr. Forlani, Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd.’s (formerly Power Clouds 

Pte. Ltd.) CEO and shareholder, accruing no interest and payable in full on March 25, 2016, (ii) Mr. Galdi, PWCL’s 

Chairman and controlling shareholder at the time, transferred 6,500,000 shares of PWCL common stock owned by Mr. 



Galdi individually to Mr. Forlani, and (iii) PWCL issued 6,500,000 shares of PWCL common stock to Power Clouds 

Pte. Ltd. In addition, all intercompany payables were set off against each other with any surplus due to any party after 

such setoff written off, and Mr. Forlani forgave all debt owed to him by each of the three target companies. 

The issuance of PWCL Common Stock was made pursuant to the exemption from the registration requirements of the 

Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “ Securities Act ”), provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. The foregoing 

description is a summary of certain of the terms of the Equity Acquisition and Contribution Agreement, the First 

Addendum and the Promissory Note. This summary does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by the 

complete text of the Agreement, the Addendum and the Note, which are filed as Exhibits to the Supplemental Information 

Statement filed on March 31, 2015. 

 

8. Acquisition and Subsequent Disposition of Green Light: 

In July of 2015, the Company acquired a 95% membership interest in Green Light GK, a Japanese company owned by 

Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. 

 

In March of 2017, Power Cloud Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company” or “PWCL”) entered into a definitive Sale 

Agreement, whereby PWCL’s Japanese subsidiary Green Light LLC, agreed to sell its Otaru PV project in Hokkaido 

province, including the land owned, in exchange for a total of JPY511 million ($4,460,963).  Under the contract Green 

Light will be responsible for the completion of the plant and connection to the local power grid. The deposit paid is 

non-refundable. 

In March of 2017 the purchaser made a down payment of JPY160 million (a$1,436,392) will make future payments in line 

with and agreed construction and completion which is expected to be on or before August 31, 2017. 

The table below outlines the transaction details for the sale of the Otaru PV project: 

 

 

At Closing 

 

Received During 

Quarter Ended  

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 

 
Yen      USD 

 
Yen     USD 

 
Yen      USD 

 

000's 

  

000's 

  

000's 

 

         Proceeds from sale 511,138   4,460,963    (160,000) (1,436,392)   351,138   3,151,074  

Costs to complete construction (181,229) (1,581,678) 
 

30,000  269,324  
 

(151,229) (1,357,113) 

Commissions (86,000)  (750,566)   10,000  89,775    (76,000) (682,016) 

Other local costs (5,000)  (43,638) 
 

5,000  44,887  
 

 -            -    

Net proceeds to PWCL 238,909   2,085,081    (115,000) (1,032,407)   123,909   1,111,946  

Costs booked to date (256,889) (2,242,000) 
      

Loss on sale (17,980)  (156,919)             

 

PWCL incurred placement agent fees and expenses as part of this transaction in the amount of JPY86 million that will be 

deducted from the gross proceeds. 

 

 

9. Series D Convertible Preferred Stock held by Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. 

 

On October 4, 2016 the Company authorized and issued 30,000,000 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, 

$0.001 par value per share.  The Series D Preferred rank pari passu with the common shares and convert into a total of 

30,000,000 common shares. The Series D Preferred vote on an as-converted basis with the common stock. Each share of 

Series D Preferred shall automatically convert to Common Stock on the earlier of (i) the date on which the Company’s 

Articles of Incorporation shall have been amended to increase the number of total authorized shares of common stock to 

150,000,000 or greater, or (ii) the date on which the Company completes a reverse stock split of its common stock, into 

that number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock as is determined by a factor of at least 3, for a full 

conversion of all issued and outstanding shares of Series D Preferred into a maximum potential total of thirty million 

(30,000,000) shares of common stock.  The Series D are not redeemable. 

 

On October 4, 2016 a Stock Exchange Agreement was entered into by and among the Company and its majority 

shareholder, Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“PCH”) whereby PCH returned 30,000,000 shares of PWCL common 

stock, which were cancelled and returned to the total authorized but unissued shares of common stock, in exchange for 

30,000,000 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock.  All terms and conditions of the Series D Convertible 



Preferred Stock are set forth in the Certificate of Designation of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, attached as an 

exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report filed on November 25, 2016. 

 

The Company did not record a net gain or loss on the cancellation of the common and issuance of the preferred shares 

of reflecting the net fair value of the shares on the day of the simultaneous return and issuance. 

 

Also on October 4, 2016, the Company entered into a Lock-Up Agreement with its CEO, Roberto Forlani, and one of 

its majority shareholders, Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“PCH”), whereby Mr. Forlani and PCH each agreed not to 

sell any of their shares held in the Company until the earlier of January 1, 2018 or the date the Max Price of the Company’s 

common stock is at or above $1.75 per share for a period of ten (10) consecutive trading days, and as further defined in the 

Lock-Up Agreement attached hereto as an Exhibit to this Annual Report.   

 

Also on October 4, 2016, the Company and PCH entered into a Proxy Agreement, whereby PCH authorized PWCL’s Board 

of Directors to vote PCH’s 30 million Series D Convertible Preferred until the earlier of: (i) the disposition of PCH’s 

Shares to either a PCH Trust or to certain third party optionees, or (ii) January 1, 2018, and with such other terms and 

conditions as set forth in the Proxy Agreement, attached as an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report filed on 

November 25, 2016. 

 

On December 28, 2016, Power Cloud Holdings Pte. Ltd.’s ownership and control was transferred to Growthcap 

Investments, Inc., a Delaware corporation owned and controlled by Vincent Browne, PWCL’s CFO and Director.  

 

 

10. Italian Plant Acquisitions 

 

On March 30, 2017, the Company acquired two operating companies, Tre Valli Energia S.R.L. and Sant’Angelo Energia 

S.R.L. both based in Italy. Each company is a special purpose vehicle (“SPV”) that either owns or operates Solar PV 

energy parks totalling 1.7MW in installed power. Details of each transaction are set out below. 

Purchase allocation to net assets acquired is a preliminary estimate made by management. A preliminary allocation of the 

purchase price has been made to major categories of assets and liabilities based on available information. The estimate 

assumes that historical values of net assets acquired were approximately at their fair market value. 

In association with the acquisition of the Italian subsidiaries we also acquired identifiable intangible assets which are 

capitalized costs of the solar assets, licenses and permits, the future contracted income streams under governmental 

incentives fixed purchase rates (Feed-In-Tariffs) and guaranteed consumption of green energy produced by the parks for 

the next 16 and 14 years, respectively. The Company has made a preliminary valuation of these contracts using the 

current/expected weighted average cost of capital to acquire the Italian companies. (See Note 13: Intangible Assets). 

The actual allocation of purchase price and the resulting effect on income from operations may differ significantly from 

the pro-forma amounts included herein. These pro-forma adjustments represent PWCL’s preliminary determination of 

purchase accounting adjustments and are based upon available information and certain assumptions that the Company 

believes to be reasonable. Consequently, the amount reflected in the pro forma financial statements are subject to change, 

and the final amounts may differ substantially. 

The table below outlines the net assets acquired and consideration given in each transaction: 

  

Sant’Angelo 

Energia 

S.R.L 

 

Tre Valli        

Energia 

S.R.L 

 

Total 

 

Leased assets - net   $ 1,361,271  $           -  $ 1,361,271  

Intangible Assets - capitalized costs relating to PV parks (net)  33,508   1,764,292   1,797,800  

Intangible Assets - discounted contracted future income streams  717,831   2,080,000   2,797,831  

Accounts Receivable 

 

 7,051   98,771   105,822  

Tax Receivables    852   180,560   181,412  

Cash assumed 

 

 65,577   17,780   83,356  

Income earned not yet invoiced    54,743   -   54,743  

Prepayments 

 

 2,025   5,298   7,323  

Trade payables    (12,960)  (54,754)  (67,714) 

Tax payables 

 

 (1,044)  (2,362)  (3,405) 

Amounts due under lease less than 12 months    (127,196)  -   (127,196) 

Amounts due under lease greater than 12 months 

 

 (1,140,515)  -   (1,140,515) 

Net Assets Acquired   $ 961,142  $ 4,089,586  $ 5,050,728  

 
 

   



Cash paid at Closing    799,028  -   799,028 

Cash payments made in 2016 (included in prepayments)  124,538  484,194  608,731 

New loan notes issued    37,576  1,932,480  1,970,056 

Contingent amounts payable under earn-out agreements -   709,913  709,913 

Common Shares issued 2016 (included in prepayments)    -   441,000  441,000 

Common shares issued at Closing 

 

 -   522,000  522,000 

Total Consideration   $ 961,141 $ 4,089,586 $ 5,050,727 

Excess of purchase price over net assets acquired  - - - 

 

Acquisition of Tre Valli Energia S.R.L : 

On March 30 2017, PC Italia 01 S.R.L., a wholly owned subsidiary of Power Clouds Europe B.V., which is, in turn, a 

wholly owned subsidiary of Power Clouds Inc. (“PWCL” or the “Company”) acquired 80% of the share capital of Tre 

Valli Energia S.R.L., an Italian SPV that owns a 1MW Solar Park in Central Italy.  

Tre Valli Energia SRL is a Special Purpose Vehicle (“SPV”) that owns and operates a 989kW PV Solar Park in the 

Abruzzo Region of Italy on municipal land pursuant to the relevant cadastral excerpts issued by the local Italian 

municipality. The plant has been fully operational for the past 4 years and is entitled to receive incentives from the Italian 

Government through the “Conto Energia II” that provides fixed purchase rates (Feed-In-Tariffs) and guaranteed 

consumption of green energy produced by the park for the next 16 years. In addition to the Feed in Tariffs, Tre Vallie has 

a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with a local electricity company that provides additional revenues to the business. 

The shares were acquired from Gaia Energy S.R.L. pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement entered into on July 26, 

2016, as amended on March 30, 2017 (the SPA). The aggregate consideration provided by PWCL in exchange for the 

acquisition consisted of the following: (i) €400,000 (approximately $430,000) in cash previously already paid to Gaia 

Energy on or about July 26, 2017 and 4,200,000 shares of PWCL restricted common stock previously issued to Gaia 

Energy on July 26, 2016, which had a market value of $441,000 at time of issue, (ii) 5,800,000 shares of PWCL restricted 

common stock, to be issued by no later than April 10, 2017 (the “Shares”) which had a market value of $522,000 when 

issued, (iii) the issuance of a €1,300,000 (approximately $1,395,000) unsecured promissory note, accruing no interest and 

having a maturity date of December 31, 2017 (the “Note”), (iv) €500,000 (approximately $537,000) to be paid in cash by 

PWCL or its subsidiaries by no later than June 30, 2017, and (v) additional earn-out consideration up to a maximum of 

€1,300,000 (approximately $1,395,000) based on the net production generated by Tre Valli Energia and delivered into the 

power grid between April 1, 2017 and March 31 2018. The Company recorded a liability of €661,245 ($709,913) for this 

item as part of the preliminary valuation using the average of the actual power output in 2016 and the expected power 

output for 2017, which management believes is a reasonable estimation of the amount due under this provision. 

The full consideration, including the potential earn-out consideration, may all be available to compensate PWCL for 

certain damages or misrepresentations of Gaia Energy.  PWCL paid no finders fees in connection with the acquisition 

and approximately €60,000 (approximately $65,000) in legal and due diligence costs. 

In determining the consideration to be paid for the purchase, PWCL placed a primary value of €3,800,000 (approximately 

$4,090,000) on the acquired assets, based on the original costs of the assets used in the park and a discounted value of the 

future cash flows from the income to be generated from sale of green energy produced by the park over the next 16 years 

under the Feed-In-Tariffs. This acquisition should provide value to the Company in the expectation of a profitable 

ongoing business with meaningful revenues.  Additional factors considered in the value determination included the 

strategic relationship that PWCL has with Gaia Energy in Italy in finding future potential acquisitions, that this is first 

operational PV acquisition operated by PWCL in Italy, a strategically important region for the Company, and that this also 

proves the Company’s new revenue model. 

Under the terms of the shareholder agreement of Tre Valli Energia S.R.L., even though the Company only owns 80% of 

the issued share capital, it is entitled to receive 100% of the profits generated by the SPV. In addition, the minority interest 

parties are not entitled to participate in any dividends, have any board representation or share in any future sale of the 

SPV. As such, the Company has not made any calculation for minority interest valuations in the consolidated balance 

sheet. 



The following are the Balance Sheet and Income Statement for Tre Valli Energia S.R.L for the twelve months ended 

December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

 

TRE VALLI ENERGIA S.R.L 

BALANCE SHEET  

 

  
December 31, 

2016 
 

December 31, 

2015 
 

Accounts receivable   $       113,647  $       157,565  

Cash at bank 
 

 248   26,080  

Taxes recoverable    171,686   169,518  

Prepayments 
 

 5,193   73,892  

Total current assets    290,774   427,054  

    
Intangible Assets - capitalized costs relating to PV parks (net)  1,935,153   2,085,286  

    
TOTAL ASSETS    2,225,927   2,512,341  

    
Trade payables    53,665   393,732  

Tax payables 
 

 -   48,899  

Total current liabilities    53,665   442,632  

    
Shareholders loan    1,567,265   1,699,525  

    
TOTAL LIABILITIES    1,620,930   2,142,156  

    
Members equity    25,254   26,080  

Other comprehensive income  (10,892)  -  

Accumulated earnings    590,634   344,105  

Total members’ equity 
 

 604,997   370,184  

TOTAL LIABILITIES & MEMBERS EQUITY $    2,225,927   $    2,512,340  

 

 

TRE VALLI ENERGIA S.R.L 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS  

 

  

December 31, 

2016 
 

December 31, 

2015 
 

Revenues    $      626,178  $        588,966  

Plant operating costs 
 

 (108,891)  (131,485) 

EBITDA    517,287   457,481  

Depreciation  
 

 (103,174)  (106,546) 

Other costs    (51,570)  (83,672) 

Net income before tax 
 

 362,544   267,262  

Income taxes    (116,014)  (48,899) 

Increase in retained earnings  $     246,530   $      218,363  

 

 

Acquisition of Sant’Angelo Energia S.R.L. 

On March 30, 2017, PC Italia 02 S.R.L., a wholly owned subsidiary of Power Clouds Europe B.V., which is, in turn, a 

wholly owned subsidiary of Power Clouds Inc. (“PWCL” or the “Company”) acquired 100% of the share capital of 

Sant’Angelo Energia S.R.L., an Italian Special Purpose Vehicle (“SPV”) that owns a 708kW Solar Park in Central Italy. 

The shares were acquired from KIS - Keep It Simple S.R.L. pursuant to a Share Purchase Agreement entered into on 

December 21, 2016,  

Sant’Angelo Energia S.R.L owns and operates a 708,2kW PV Solar Park in the Marche Region of Italy on a 25 year land 

lease executed in 2010 and a 25 year surface and easement right agreement executed in 2011. The plant is entitled to 

receive public incentives from the Italian Government through the “Conto Energia IV” that provides fixed purchase rates 

(Feed-In-Tariffs) and guaranteed consumption of green energy produced by the park for 20 years. In addition to the Feed 



in Tariffs, Sant’Angelo has a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with a local electricity company that provides additional 

revenues to the business. The business also owns the land that the park is constructed on. 

 

The aggregate consideration provided by PWCL in exchange for the acquisition consisted of the following: (i) €744,251 

(approximately $799,000) in cash paid at Closing of which €40,000 (approximately $43,000) held in escrow for 12 

months from Closing against certain tax open items and as a hold back for any unexpected costs not found in due 

diligence, and (ii) deferred consideration of €31,500 (approximately $37,500) is due to be paid in two equal payments on 

March 30, 2018 and 2019. 

 

The full consideration is available to compensate PWCL for certain damages or misrepresentations of the Seller. PWCL 

paid €116,000 (approximately $124,500) in finders fees, due diligence and legal costs in connection with the acquisition. 

 

In determining the amount of cash to be paid in the transaction, PWCL placed a primary value of €2,076,000 

(approximately $2,229,000), including the assumption of existing leasing debt, on the acquired assets by assessing the 

original costs of the underlying physical assets present, net working capital and a discounted value of the future cash flows 

from the income to be generated from the sale of green energy produced by the park over the next 14 years under the 

Feed-In-Tariffs. This acquisition should provide value in the expectation of a profitable ongoing business with 

meaningful revenues. 

 

The following are the Balance Sheet and Income Statement for Sant’Angelo Energia S.R.L for the twelve months ended 

December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

 

SANT’ANGELO ENERGIA S.R.L 

BALANCE SHEET  

 

 

 

December 31, 

2016 
 

December 31, 

2015 

Accounts receivable   $       6,868  $       4,347  

Cash at bank 

 

 28,934   15,213  

Income earned not invoiced    57,354   67,372  

Taxes recoverable 

 

 -   14,126  

Prepayments    101,880   120,618  

Total current assets 

 

 195,037   221,677  

        

Leased assets - net 

 

 1,351,095   1,465,025  

Intangible assets - capitalized costs relating to PV parks (net)  32,841   35,860  

 
 

  
TOTAL ASSETS   $ 1,546,132  $ 1,686,702  

 
 

  
Trade payables    13,637   58,679  

Tax payables 

 

 3,802   6,520  

Lease ST    124,667   128,742  

Total current liabilities 

 

 142,107   193,941  

        

Payments due on leases greater than 12 months  1,149,005   1,248,487  

        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

 

 1,291,112   1,442,428  

        

Members equity 

 

 105,225   108,665  

Other comprehensive income    (4,293)  -  

Accumulated earnings 

 

 154,087   135,609  

Total members’ equity    255,020   244,274  

 
 

  
TOTAL LIABILITIES & MEMBERS EQUITY $ 1,546,132  $ 1,686,702  

     

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

SANT’ANGELO ENERGIA S.R.L 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS  

 

  

December 31, 

2016 

 

December 31, 

2015 

 

Revenues   $    276,916  $    303,176  

Plant operating costs 
 

 (51,753)  (57,593) 

EBITDA    225,163   245,583  

Depreciation  
 

 (67,555)  (69,763) 

Leasing interest    (56,966)  (61,243) 

Net Income before tax 
 

 100,642   114,578  

Income taxes    (27,522)  (33,686) 

Net income after tax 
 

 73,120   80,891  

Dividends declared    (54,641)  -  

To retained earnings 
 

$  18,479  $  80,891  

 

 

 

 

POWER CLOUDS INC. 

UNAUDITED PRO-FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

MARCH 31, 2017, DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND DECEMBER 31, 2015 
 

 

The following are condensed pro-forma financial information prepared as though the acquisition of the Italian operating 

companies had occurred as of the beginning of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.  

 

 

 

Three Months 

Ended  

March 31,  

2017 

 

Year  

Ended  

December 31,  

2016 

 

Year  

Ended  

December 31,  

2015 

 

Revenues $ 464,370  $ 2,329,593  $ 1,770,172  

t/o PWCL  279,251   1,426,499   878,030  

t/o Italian operations  185,119   903,094   892,142  

    
EBITDA  23,572   (282,326)  459,585  

t/o PWCL  (124,524)  (1,024,776)  (243,480) 

t/o Italian operations  148,096   742,450   703,064  

    
Net Income  (282,613)  (1,004,682)  (287,818) 

t/o PWCL  (347,232)  (1,440,347)  (635,972) 

t/o Italian operations  64,619   435,664   348,154  

 

These pro-forma adjustments represent PWCL’s preliminary determination of purchase accounting adjustments and are 

based upon available information and certain assumptions that the Company believes to be reasonable. Consequently, the 

amount reflected in the pro-forma financial statements are subject to change, and the final amounts may differ 

substantially. 

 



11. Fixed Assets    

 

As of March 31, 2017, the Company had $7,483,612 of fixed assets as outlined in the table below. The assets have been 

valued based on actual cost of construction. We currently depreciate the plants with a useful life of between 16 and 20 

years. 

 

 

Plant & 

Machinery 

Office   

Equipment 

Plants Under 

Construction 

Leased          

Assets Total 

Cost 

     December 31, 2016 $ 6,699,745   5,834   2,242,213   -  $ 8,947,792  

Acquisition of Italian operating companies (FN10)  -   -  
 

 1,723,128   1,723,128  

Additions  -   -   -   -   -  

Disposals (FN8)  -   -   (2,242,213)  -   (2,242,213) 

March 31, 2017  6,699,745   5,834   -   1,723,128  $ 8,428,707  

      
Accumulated depreciation           

December 31, 2016 $ (488,811)  -   -   -   (488,811) 

Acquisition of Italian operating companies (FN10) -  - -  (361,857)  (361,857) 

Charge for period  (94,397)  -   -   -   (94,397) 

March 31, 2017  (583,208)  -   -   (361,857)  (583,208) 

      
Net Book Value           

December 31, 2016 $ 6,210,934  $ 5,834   $ 2,242,213   -  $ 8,458,981  

March 31, 2017 $ 6,116,536  $ 5,834   -  $ 1,361,271  $ 7,483,642  

 

 

In March of 2017, the Company entered into a definitive Sale Agreement to sell the Green Light GK solar project located 

in Otaru Japan (See Footnote 8).  

 

On March 30, 2017, the Company acquired the share capital of two operating subsidiaries in Italy. (See Footnote 10). 

 

As of December 31, 2016, the Company recorded $2,242,213 representing the actual construction costs incurred to date 

for the Green Light GK solar project in Otaru, Japan. The project requires an estimated additional $1.6 million to 

complete during 2017. Based on this and future committed spending to complete the project, the carrying value was 

deemed fair and no provisions are required. The Company has received suitable finance terms to complete the plant. Final 

receipt of funds is subject to satisfactory ongoing due diligence by the funder at their sole discretion.  

 

12. Intangible Assets 

As of March 31, 2017, the Company had $4,480,471 of intangible fixed assets as outlined in the table below.  

 

  

 March 31,   

2017  

December 31, 

2016 

Cost 

 
  

Prepayments relating to the acquisition of additional PV plants   $   244,840  $ 1,262,397  

Value of discounted future contracted income streams acquired 

 

 2,513,171   -  

Capitalized costs relating to PV plants    2,797,831   -  

Total 

 

5,555,841   1,262,397  

 
 

  
Accumulated amortisation       

Capitalized costs relating to PV plants 

 

 (715,371)  -  

March 31, 2017    (715,371)  -  

 
 

  
Net Book Value   $ 4,840,471  $ 1,262,397  

 

On March 30, 2017, the Company acquired the share capital of two operating subsidiaries in Italy. On completion of the 

acquisitions, the Company allocated $1,049,731 of prepaid expenses directly related to the purchase of these assets. (See 

Footnote 10). 

 



In association with the acquisition of the Italian subsidiaries we also acquired identifiable intangible assets which are 

capitalized costs of the solar assets, licenses and permits, the future contracted income streams under governmental 

incentives fixed purchase rates (Feed-In-Tariffs) and guaranteed consumption of green energy produced by the parks for 

the next 16 and 14 years, respectively. The Company has made a preliminary valuation of these contracts by discounting 

the future income streams using the actual and/or expected weighted average cost capital for the acquisitions. 

 

The Company will amortize the acquired intangible assets over the remaining life of the Feed in Tariff periods 

respectively. There was no charge for amortization in the quarter ended March 31, 2017. 

 

 

13.  Capital Leases 

We have acquired equipment through capital lease obligations with an initial value of €1,605,000, primarily for the PV 

assets used to construct the Sant’Angelo park in Italy.  As at March 31, 2017 there was approximately €1,180,000 

($1,261,335) remaining on the lease. The lease commenced in 2011, has a term of 18 years and will expire in September 

2029. Interest is calculated on the outstanding principal based on EURIBOR 3 months (EUR3M) plus an agreed margin 

for the lender. The average interest rate based on previous years is approximately 4.5% per annum. This interest amount 

may vary due to future changes in EUR3M index. 

 

 

14.           Convertible and Unconvertible Promissory Notes 

 

No convertible promissory notes were issued during the three months ended March 31, 2017 or 2016. 

 

Senior Secured Note: 

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2016, the Company guaranteed a 6.5 million RON (equivalent to 

approximately US$1,592,500) promissory note issued by one of its subsidiaries, Power Clouds S.R.L., a Romanian 

company (“Power Clouds Romania”) to OTP Bank in Romania, which is secured in first position against the Romanian 

solar parks and customer contracts held by Power Clouds Romania, accruing interest annually at a rate of ROBOR 3M + 

3.3% and having a term of 60 months. 5.15 million RON ($1,201,300 at current exchange rates) is outstanding at March 

31, 2017. 

 

Loans from Officer: 

On November 12, 2015, the Company issued to Mr. Forlani a $75,000 convertible promissory note, accruing 10% annual 

interest, convertible into shares of restricted common stock at $0.20 per share and having a 1 year term, which was 

extended to December 31, 2017 (unless the Professional Consulting Agreement, as described in the Related Parties 

Footnote below, is terminated, in which case the note is due on such termination date). 

 

Also on November 12, 2015 the Company entered into a First Amendment to a $100,000 Promissory Note issued to Mr. 

Forlani, our CEO, on March 25, 2015, whereby the maturity date of the Note was extended to December 31, 2016 or the 

termination date of the Professional Consulting Agreement with Mr. Forlani, as described above; the Note shall accrue 

10% interest annually commencing January 1, 2016, and the Note is now convertible at any time at the option of Mr. 

Forlani at $0.20 per share.  This note was extended again to December 31, 2017. 

 

In December 2015, the Company received $100,000 in cash from Roberto Forlani. As a result, the Company issued to Mr. 

Forlani a $100,000 convertible promissory note, accruing 10% annual interest, convertible into shares of restricted 

common stock at $0.20 per share and having a 1 year term, which was extended to December of 2017 (unless the 

Professional Consulting Agreement, as described in the Related Parties Footnote below, is terminated, in which case the 

note is due on such termination date). 

 

During the quarter ended March 31, 2017 the Company repaid $45,000 of the outstanding principal and received $50,000 

in new funds from Mr. Forlani. As at March 31, 2017 $280,000 was due under the above notes. 

 

Promissory Notes: 

During the quarter ended March 31, 2017 the Company issued to Gaia Energy S.R.L. (“Gaia”) a €1,300,000 

(approximately $1,388,660) unsecured promissory note, accruing no interest and having a maturity date of December 

31, 2017 (the “Note”), and a promissory note for €500,000 (approximately $534,100) to be paid in cash by PWCL or its 

subsidiaries by no later than June 30, 2017, as part of the consideration for the acquisition of Tre Valli Energia S.R.L.  

As part of this transaction, the Company also issued 10 million shares of restricted common stock to Gaia, making Gaia 

a related party upon the closing of the acquisition due to its resulting beneficial ownership of approximately 15% of 

PWCL’s total issued common stock.  Therefore, the outstanding balance on the notes has been recorded as related 

party debt (See footnote 10). 



 

On September 30, 2015, the Company issued a convertible loan note for $1,000,000 to WGA in conjunction with the 

spin out of WRMT. (See footnote 5 for details). The note has a three-year term, accrues no interest, and is convertible at 

a fixed price of $0.20 per share, subject to certain triggers and restrictions. The Company can repay the note at any time 

without penalty. As the conversion price is above the market price at the time of issuance, no beneficial conversion 

costs were recorded. 

 

In 2016 a portion of the convertible loan note (approximately $282,600) was assigned to various third parties and is 

now convertible at market price, with a floor price of $0.20 per share and a maturity date of December 31, 2018. 

Another portion of this note (approximately $509,400) was assigned to various third parties and is not convertible and 

includes a maturity date of December 31, 2020. The remainder of the note was forgiven by WGA. (See Footnote 5). 

 

The following table reflects the total debt balances of the Company as of March 31, 2017 and 2016: 

 

 

                    March 31, 2017 
 

March 31, 2016 

 
Within 

1 Year 
 

After 1 

Year 
Total 

 
Total 

Senior secured debt  304,720     896,580   1,201,300     -    

Capital leases  126,556  
 

 1,134,778   1,261,335  
  

Convertible promissory note – related parties   280,000     -     280,000     1,422,429  

Promissory note – related parties - €1,800,000 due within one year  1,922,760  
 

 -     1,922,760  
 

 -    

Deferred consideration due for acquisitions 

€17,500 due March 30, 2018 and March 30, 2019  
 18,694     18,694   37,387     -    

Deferred consideration due for acquisitions 
€661,245 due April 30, 2018 

 -    
 

 706,342   706,342  
 

 -    

Promissory notes – third parties  31,400     509,400   540,800     -    

Convertible promissory notes - third parties - maturing September 2018  -       251,200   251,200     -    

Total $2,684,130 
 

$3,516,994 $6,201,123 
 

$1,422,429 

Accrued interest $35,458 
 

 -    $35,458 
 

$52,335 

 

 

15.  Commitments and Contingencies 

 

Litigation 

The Company is not currently involved in any litigation that it believes could have a material adverse effect on its 

financial condition or results of operations. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by 

any court, public board, government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the 

executive officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, threatened against or affecting the Company, our common 

stock, any of our subsidiaries or of our companies or our subsidiaries’ officers or directors in their capacities as such, in 

which an adverse decision could have a material adverse effect. 

 

In the ordinary course of business, we are from time to time involved in various pending or threatened legal 

actions.  The litigation process is inherently uncertain and it is possible that the resolution of such matters might have a 

material adverse effect upon our financial condition and/or results of operations.  However, in the opinion of our 

management, other than as set forth herein, matters currently pending or threatened against us are not expected to have a 

material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations. 

 

Leases 
Our Romanian companies lease the land for the solar parks at a combined annual cost of $18,000. The leases 

commenced in 2013 and run for 25 years. 

 

Our Italian SPVs hold surface rights for the land that the parks are constructed on and pay an annual fee of €51,000 

($53,400) to one of the municipalities for those surface rights. In the other case, the surface right has been paid in full 

for the duration of the term. Each of the surface rights are for a minimum of 20 years with a 5 year extension option. 

 

 



16.           Shareholder’s Equity 
 

Common Stock: 
As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, 100,000,000 total shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, were authorized, 

and 65,851,725 and 84,777,098 shares were issued and outstanding, respectively. There are no special voting or economic 

rights or privileges.  Dividends may be paid on the outstanding shares as declared by our board of directors.  Each share 

of common stock is entitled to one vote. 

 

During the three months ended March 31, 2017, the Company issued a total of 74,627 shares of restricted common 

stock to a consultant for services rendered. Additionally, 1,000,000 shares of restricted common stock were returned to, 

and cancelled by, the Company from World Global Cash Ltd. as part of a stock exchange agreement (See Footnote 6 for 

more details). 

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued a total of 12,050,000 shares of restricted 

common stock in exchange for services rendered, consisting of 4,200,000 shares to Gaia Energy in exchange for the 

acquisition of certain third party assets and 7,850,000 shares to 5 third parties in exchange for services rendered. During 

the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company also issued 30,000,000 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock 

in exchange for the return and cancellation of 30,000,000 shares of restricted common stock from Power Clouds 

Holdings Pte. Ltd. 

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company issued a total of 12,487,005 new common shares, consisting 

of 1,250,000 shares of restricted common stock to Debrun Capital Inc. (a company controlled by our CFO) in exchange 

for consulting services rendered, 6,500,000 shares of restricted common stock for the acquisition of certain subsidiaries 

of Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly Power Clouds Pte. Ltd.) (See Financial Footnote 7 for more detail), 

3,937,005 shares of restricted common stock to Anch Holdings Ltd. as part of the consideration paid on behalf of one of 

the Company’s subsidiaries, WRMT, to purchase an equity interest in another company, and 800,000 shares of 

restricted common stock to three third party independent contractors as partial consideration for certain consulting 

services provided. 

 

Preferred Stock: 

As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, 50,000,000 total shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001, were authorized, and 

30,000,000 and 0 shares, respectively, of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock were issued and outstanding. Series A, B 

and C Preferred Stock have been retired. 

 

During the three months ended March 31, 2017, no preferred stock was issued. 

  

Warrants: 

As of March 31, 2017, warrants to purchase up to 600,000 shares of restricted common stock were issued and 

outstanding, exercisable at $0.20 per share and having a 3 year term. As the exercise price of the warrants is above the 

market price at March 31, 2017, no beneficial conversion feature cost was recorded against either of these warrants in 

the current period.  No charge has been taken for these warrants in the income statement for the three months ended 

March 31, 2017 and 2016. 

 

Effective December 31, 2016, Vincent Browne, our CFO, and Roberto Forlani, our CEO, each agreed to cancel, 

effective immediately, all unvested warrants issued to them pursuant to their consulting agreements: See Related Party 

Transactions FN 15.  This resulted in 7,200,000 warrants being cancelled and 600,000 vested warrants remaining 

issued and outstanding to Mr. Browne, and 5,400,000 warrants being cancelled by Mr. Forlani. 

 

2014 Stock Incentive Plan: 

The Board of Directors of Power Clouds Inc. (the “Company”) believes that the attraction and retention of high quality 

personnel are essential to the Company’s continued growth and success and that a stock plan such as the 2014 Stock 

Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) is necessary for the Company to be competitive in its compensation practices.  Therefore, on 

April 3, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors and the shareholders, through the written consent of the holders of a 

majority of our issued and outstanding voting securities, voted in favor of the Plan.  A total of three million (3,000,000) 

shares of the Company’s common stock has been initially reserved for issuance under the 2014 Stock Incentive Plan, 

subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split, stock or other extraordinary dividend, or other similar change in the 

common stock or capital structure of the Company.    

 

As at March 31, 2017 and 2016, no shares have yet been issued under this plan; all previous stock awards granted under 

the Plan have been cancelled because the awards never vested. 

 



 

17.           Dividend 

 

The Company's Board of Directors will evaluate on a quarterly basis the amount and timing of future dividends based on 

the Company's operating results, financial condition, capital requirements and general business conditions. The amount 

and timing of dividends may vary, and the payment of any dividend does not assure that the Company will be able to pay 

or will declare dividends in the future. 

 

In May of 2015, the Board approved a share dividend consisting of 13,812,850 of the 15,095,000 common shares it held in 

WRMT. Shareholders of PWCL received one (1) share of WRMT common stock for every six (6) PWCL shares of 

common stock that they hold as of the record date, which was October 1, 2015. PWCL maintains a 3.7% ownership 

position in WRMT following the share dividend distribution. (See Footnote 6 of this report for more details). For more 

information, please see WRMT’s SEC Form S-1/A filed on September 2, 2015 and its Prospectus, Form 424B3, filed 

on October 7, 2015. 

 

 

18. Related Party Transactions 

 

Effective December 31, 2016, Vincent Browne, our CFO, and Roberto Forlani, our CEO, each agreed to cancel, 

effective immediately, all unvested warrants issued to them pursuant to their consulting agreements described below.  

This resulted in 7,200,000 warrants being cancelled and 600,000 vested warrants remaining issued and outstanding to 

Mr. Browne, and 5,400,000 warrants being cancelled by Mr. Forlani.  

 

On October 4, 2016 a Stock Exchange Agreement was entered into by and among the Company and its majority 

shareholder, Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“PCH”) whereby PCH returned 30,000,000 shares of PWCL common 

stock, which were cancelled and returned to the total authorized but unissued shares of common stock, in exchange for 

30,000,000 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock.  At the time of this transaction, PCH was owned and 

controlled by Fabio Galdi, our former CEO and Director.  As of December 31, 2016, PCH is owned and controlled by 

Vincent Browne, our CFO and Director, through his ownership and control of Growthcap Investments Inc.  See 

Footnote 8 for more details. 

 

In July of 2016, the Company entered into a new Professional Consulting Agreement with VestCo Corp., a company 

owned and controlled by Mr. Vincent Browne, our CFO and a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, which 

supersedes and replaces the previous Professional Consulting Agreement entered into a year ago with VestCo. The initial 

term of the Consulting Agreement is three years with automatic renewal for additional three year terms.  As 

consideration for the continuation of Mr. Browne’s services, the Company agreed to pay a quarterly base fee of $45,000, 

a potential cash bonus of 2% of adjusted annual income, and the extension of the term of his existing warrants to purchase 

up to a total of 1,800,000 shares of restricted common stock, with 600,000 vested as of July of 2016 and the remaining 

portion vesting over the next 2 years, exercisable at $0.20 per share and having a 5 year term from July of 2016. 

Additionally, as of July of 2016, the Company issued to VestCo warrants to purchase up to a total of 3,000,000 shares 

of restricted common stock of the Company at an exercise price of $0.20 per share, with 1,000,000 vesting annually 

over a period of 3 years and having a 5 year exercise term from issuance. The Company also issued to VestCo 

additional warrants to purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of restricted common stock of the Company at an exercise price 

of $0.20 per share and having a three year term, but which shall only vest at the time that third party 

financing/investment into the Company reaches a certain target amount. VestCo will also be entitled to receive up to 

2,000,000 additional warrants, at a purchase price equal to the market price of the Common Stock at time of each 

issuance, based on the successful acquisition by the Company, of productive Solar projects over and above those built 

by the Company, such amount to be calculated based on the amount of actual productivity of such projects. 

 

On November 12, 2015, the Company entered into a Settlement Agreement with Roberto Forlani, our CEO, for past 

compensation due to Mr. Forlani, whereby the Company agreed to issue to Mr. Forlani a $75,000 convertible promissory 

note, accruing 10% interest, convertible into shares of restricted common stock at $0.20 per share and having a 1 year term 

(unless the Professional Consulting Agreement as described below is terminated, in which case the note is due on such 

termination date). 

 

Also as of November 12, 2015, the Company entered into a Professional Consulting Agreement with Mr. Forlani, to be 

effective as of January 1, 2016, having an initial term of 3 years with automatic renewal for additional 3 year terms 

thereafter, pursuant to which Mr. Forlani will continue to be the Company's Chief Executive Officer, as well as Chairman 

of the Company’s Board of Directors. As consideration for such services, commencing January 1, 2016 the Company 

agreed to pay a quarterly base fee of $45,000 to Mr. Forlani, a potential cash bonus of 2% of adjusted annual earnings, to 

be applied at December 31, 2016 and each year thereafter, and warrants to purchase up to a total of 3,000,000 shares of 



restricted common stock, vesting over 3 years, exercisable at $0.20 per share and having a 5 year term.  Additionally, Mr. 

Forlani will be entitled to receive warrants to purchase up to 2,000,000 additional shares of common stock, at an 

exercise price equal to the market price of the common stock at time of each issuance, based on the successful 

acquisition by the Company, of Solar projects over and above those built by the Company; warrants to purchase up to 

400,000 shares of common stock shall be issued for every 50 Mw acquired by the Company. 

 

Also on November 12, 2015 the Company entered into a First Amendment to a $100,000 Promissory Note issued to Mr. 

Forlani, our CEO, on March 25, 2015, whereby the maturity date of the Note was extended to December 31, 2016 or the 

termination date of the Professional Consulting Agreement with Mr. Forlani, as described above, the Note shall accrue 

10% interest annually commencing January 1, 2016, and the Note is now convertible at any time at the option of Mr. 

Forlani at $0.20 per share. 

 

On September 30, 2015, PWCL sold two of its wholly owned subsidiaries, WGA and Cellad, to Fabio Galdi, our former 

executive officer and director and former majority shareholder of PWCL. The Company issued a convertible loan note 

for $1,000,000 to WGA as part of the disposition of the space technology business to Fabio Galdi. (See Footnote 5 and 

10 for details). 

 

In March of 2015, the Company acquired a controlling interest in three companies: Power Clouds Japan GK (PCGK), 

Parc Solar Moldoveni SRL (“SPM”) (now called Power Clouds S.R.L.) and F.R.A.N. Energy Investment SRL 

(“FRAN”), each a subsidiary of Power Clouds Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly Power Clouds Pte. Ltd.) a Singapore 

company owned and controlled at the time of the transaction by Roberto Forlani, our CEO. In July of 2015, the 

Company acquired a 95% interest in another subsidiary of Power Clouds Pte. Ltd. (See Footnote 7 for more details.) 

 

 

19.  Subsequent Events 

 

In accordance with ASC 855, Subsequent Events, we have evaluated subsequent events through June 6, 2017, the date of 

available issuance of these unaudited financial statements. During this period, we had the following materially 

recognizable subsequent events. 

Common Stock: 

 

On April 1, 2017, the Company issued 5,800,000 shares of restricted common stock to Gaia Energy as part of the 

consideration paid for the acquisition of the Italian Solar Plans (See FN10 above).  On April 5, 2017, the Company issued 

50,000 shares of restricted common stock to a third party consultant for services rendered.  The issuances of Common 

Stock were made pursuant to the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as 

amended (the “Securities Act”), provided by Regulation S or Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. 

 


